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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
South Dakota's State Capitol is a four-story Neo-Classic structure that has 

some English and Italian Renaissance features. liHrfests*s<oifT"*a<!1)oulder or drift 
granite foundation. The material came from the surrounding prairie. Native granite 
also appears in the steps and in some of the window trimming. The first level of 
the structure displays a Marquette Raindrop sandstone for its facing while the other 
stories are of Bedford limestone.

The building has a similar floor plan to that of the nation's capitol with a 
central rotunda flanked by the legislative wings. The originajl J91Q structure was 
124 feet wide, 292 feet long, and 161 feet high from the ground to the lantern tip. 
The only major change is an annex, built in 1931, that is located to the rear. A 
renovation in 1964-65 involved mostly the interior work, but the dome v/as recovered.

The building's design carne from C.E. Bell's drawings of the Montana State Cap­ 
itol. This device defrayed the costs of an original design. The contractor was

W,of Stillwater, Minnesota, under the supervision of State Engineer, Samrnuel 
Lea. The cost of the project, including the grounds was under one million dollars.

Some of the stylistic features include a simplified Corinthian portico that 
shelters the three round arched entries. Similar half round windows with keystones 
appear above the other entrances, which have Ionic columns. Except for some oval 
windows, the remaining openings are flat and most have lintel and slipsill surrounds. 
The roof line has a slightly pitched roof and balustrade all around. Just below and 
on each side of the dome is a decorated typanum of the pediment type. The dome it­ 
self features nich-like pendentives, a Corinthian peristyle, lunettes, and is topped 
by a copper roof dome and lantern.

While the exterior has remained mostly unscathed by modernizations, the interior 
has had several alterations. .Milliam^G.Andrews of Clinton, Iowa, designed the orig­ 
inal classical decor. The major changes have occurred in the two legislative chambers 
and the various offices. All of these used to be much more lavish and ornate.

However, much of the early beauty of the capitol remains including the marble 
work. Italian workmen did the floor and used marble from their home country. Other 
types of marble used are dark Tennessee, gray Tennessee, Verde Antique, and Vermont 
Lightcloud. The interior pillars are of artificial marble. Four busts still adorn 
the rotunda, including two by Harry Daniel Webster and two by Gutzon Borglum, the 
sculptor of i'lount Rushmore.

The Capitol is well known for its attractive murals and paintings. In the 
dome, four large round paintings appear, with female figures that symbolize the 
major activities in agriculture, livestock, mining, and the family. Charles Hollo- 
way designed the murals in the Senate, House of Representatives, and the Supreme 
Court chambers. JEjdwardBlashfield, the most famous of the artists, painted the 
scenes in the Governor's conference room. Edwarcj Simmond painted five murals, while 
recently Paul Warcloud finished another. Tnere are various paintings throughout the 
Capitol inTTQTmrf fmrmits of the governors and paintings by Oscar Howe, the frtist 

Laureate of the state.
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The Capitol grounds are attractively landscaped and add to the aesthetic 
setting. To the east is Capitol Lake which is fed by an artesian well. Also 
nearby is a flaming fountain of natural gas. On the other side of the lake 
sits the gray-colored Governor's Residence. Th^KP.A. built this house in 
1936 and it has served as the Chief Executive's liorne* ever since. It is a com­ 
bination of colonial and ranch house design with a pedirnental entry, white shut­ 
ters and a Targe joined chimney. Its landscaping is equally as attractive as the 
Capitol's.

The only intrusions are a small brickjpaintenance building just to the east 
and rear of the Capitol, and a rather modern walkway near the flaming fountain.
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most important governmental building in South Dakota. For over sixty-five years 
it has been the'symbol of state government. As various governors, legislators^ 
and judges have come and gone, the state house remains, a vivid reminder of their 
contributions to South Dakota's history and its laws.

The building is also important because it is probably the best example of Neo- 
dlassic Revival architecture in the state. A copper plated dome, Corinthian columns, 
rusticated walls of granite and Bedford limestone, and a decorative interior are some 
of the building's major features.

The stimulation for erecting such a building occurred in 1904 after a third elect­ 
ion was held on where the capitol should be located. 1 Many citizens believed that 
a large, permanent structure would end any further relocation efforts. So the Gov­ 
ernor, Secretary of State, Auditor, and Commissioner of Schools and Public Lands be­ 
came the members of a State Capitol Commission, whose duties were to plan the con­ 
struction and to sell state lands to meet the costs.

It later became apparent that this means of funding would not suffice so the 
legislature provided a rather small appropriation. Laboring under such restrictions, 
the Commission decided to use the same plans that Montana had used for their new cap­ 
itol. This would defray the costs of securing original designs. C.E. Bell of Bell 
and Detweiler of Minneapolis, who was the architect for tha Montana project, became 
consultant for the South Dakota building.

t/ork on tha structure began in 1905 with C. Lejjper of Minnesota laying the drift 
nranite foundation for the left wi nf ""Progress s'Tov/ed" in 1906 because the question 
of v/hathar native or cheaner imoorted materials should ba us' d became a olitical
issua. Finally on June 4, 1907'3 the Conm is si on awarded the contract to O.H. 01 son.
ot Still water, Minnesota, for iris low bid of

In 1903 and 190?, Qlson, under the supervision, of State Enginaar Saminuel M. Lea, 
finished most of the exterior v/ork. Tha interior work and furnishings were completed 
in 1910 and on June 30 of that year the dedication ceremonies occurred. Speakers 
D raised tha fiscal responsibility of the people involved in the erection of tha new 
state capitol, for tha' total cost of the structure and ground was under one million 
dollars.

lsni~otl:iaFlSo^onte?ts occurred in 1889 and 1390. The first was for location 
temporarily and several cities were involved. The 1390 was for permanent locale, 
and Pierre~, Huron, and to a lasser extent, Watertown, were involved. In 1904, Pierre 
and litchell were rivals.
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Also located on the grounds is Capitol Lake. An artesian well supplies the 
lake with 92° water which keeps it from freezing over in the winter. This well 
originally provided natural gas for the city of Pierre. Its depth was 1,350 feet 
with a flow of 1,620 gallons of water a minute. But in the 1950's an explosion 
occurred and the gas pipes were sealed. However, there was still too much gas 
coming from the well so the state built a flaming fountain, which after some ad­ 
justment has remained lit.

On the east side of the lake is the Governor's Residence, which is a com­ 
bination of ranch house and colonial designs. The W.P.A. built the home in 1936. 
It is a rambling gray-colored two story house that has been the residence of every 
governor for the last forty years.
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SUPPLEMENTARY LISTING RECORD

NRIS Reference Number: 76001737 

Property Name: South Dakota State Capitol 

County: Hughes State: South Dakota

N/A 
Multiple Name

This property is listed in the National Register of Historic Places in accordance with the attached 
nomination documentation subject to the following exceptions, exclusions, or amendments, 
notwithstanding the National Park Service certification included in the nomination documentation.

_ August 05, 2006 
/ /Sicmfltnre nf the Keener Dax / Signature of the Keeper Date of Action

Amended Items in Nomination:

Section 1: The Name of the Property is, hereby, changed to "South Dakota State Capitol" to indicate that 
the Governor's House, originally located on the grounds, has been removed and no longer contributes to 
the significance of the property.

The South Dakota State Historic Preservation Office was notified of this amendment.

DISTRIBUTION:
National Register property file
Nominating Authority (without nomination attachment)


